
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 15, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held May 1, 2023 
• Executive Session held May 1, 2023 

b. Approve Reappointment of Kevin Herrit as the Private Sector Member of the Georgia 
Mountain Regional Commission Council 

 

8. Employee Recognition 
9. Proclamation: National Accounting Day, May 19, 2023 

10. Proclamation: National Public Works Week, May 21 -27, 2023 
 

BUSINESS 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

11. Consideration of Proposed Charter Amendment 
12. Discuss Available Rental Space at City Hall Complex 
13. Personnel Policy Revisions with Revised Organizational Chart 
14. FY 2023-2024 Proposed Budget Presentation 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

15. Bob Bolz, City Manager 

16. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED        

     ADJOURNMENT 
  
 

 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, June 5, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023    
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held May 1, 2023 
• Executive Session held May 1, 2023 

b. Approve Reappointment of Kevin Herrit as the Private Sector 
Member of the Georgia Mountain Regional Commission Council 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING HELD MAY 1, 2023 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD MAY 1, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 1, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember Will Illg, Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember John Walden, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, 
City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utility Director Jacob Barr, 
Director of Downtown Development Amanda Edmondson.  Stacy Harris and Clay Moss were also 
present from the Planning & Zoning Department.  

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Phillips.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason announced the first Food Truck Friday will take place on May 5, 
2023 at the Farmer’s Market Pavilion.  Amicalola Regional Farmer’s Market had their opening day on 
Saturday and later in the season will add hours on Wednesday afternoon.  He also encouraged the 
public to participate in and provide their input on the City’s Comprehensive Plan survey and 
announced the next steering committee meeting for the Comprehensive Plan would be held at City 
Hall on Thursday, May 11, 2023 starting at 5:30 pm.   

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  Corey Gutherie, 3384 Elliott Family Parkway – He came to speak on behalf of 
agenda item #13 to present plans for a greenspace area as a required stipulation from a previously 
approved zoning amendment request.  The plan includes a trail from the road leading to a greenspace 
area which backs up to the creek and will have some picnic tables.  He further stated there will be a 
mail kiosk but would be limited in space for a gathering area.  He stated the trail to the creek is 
approximately one hundred feet. 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a) made by W. 
Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held April 17, 2023 

 

8. PROCLAMATION: 54TH ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL CLERKS, APRIL 30 – MAY 6, 
2023:  Mayor Eason read the proclamation and thanked the City Clerk Beverly Banister and Deputy 
City Clerk Tracy Smith for their service to the City.  
 

9. PROCLAMATION: WATER PROFESSIONALS WEEK, MAY 7 – MAY 13, 2023:  Mayor Eason read 
the proclamation and thanked the City’s utilities staff for their commitment and hard work on behalf of 
the City.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

10. EXTENDING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON THE ISSUANCE OF DEVELOPMENT AND 
BUILDING PERMITS:  Motion to open a public hearing made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. Mayor Eason conducted the public hearing.  No one spoke in favor of 
or opposition to the request.  Motion to close the public hearing made by J. Walden; second by C. 
Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  Attorney Tallant briefly explained the City is awaiting the 
recommended fee schedule as a part of the study done by the Georgia Mountain Regional 
Commission.  Tentatively the process could be completed by August 2023 should the Council choose 
to proceed with implementing impact fees.  However, the Council could at any time repeal the 
moratorium.    
 

Motion to approve Resolution #R2023-04 as presented made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  
Councilmember Phillips stated his opposition to impact fees and reported that several subdivisions 
have been delaying their building process because the impact fee is unknown at this time.  Mayor 
Eason explained the delay in attempting to complete this study.  Councilmember French requested 
clarification on whether or not the moratorium would terminate should the Council choose to reject 
the impact fee recommendation; Attorney Tallant confirmed that it would.  Vote carried three in favor 
(Walden, Illg, French) with one opposed (Phillips). (Exhibit “A”) 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 1, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

BUSINESS 
 

11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSUEM 
DIRECTOR:   Motion to accept the termination letter from Kara Grayson Gallery LLC (Cindy Elliott) 
regarding the Independent Contractor Agreement as the Director of the Dawsonville History Museum 
and to collect a balance of $1,129.63 for April’s percentage rent to offset payments made to Kara 
Grayson Gallery LLC in 2023 plus $250.00 for April’s base rent from the museum made by W. Illg; 
second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

12. CHANGE IN PROFESSIONAL SERVICE PROVIDER:  Motion to approve a change in the City’s 
appointment of professional legal services from Miles, Hansford & Tallant, LLC to Tallant Howell and 
to appoint Jonah Howell as the City’s Solicitor effective June 1, 2023 made by M. French; second by 
J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

13. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL FOR AMENITY PACKAGE AND/OR GREENSPACE FOR 
ARBOR WEST SUBDVISION:  Clay Moss provided a staff recommendation for the Council to 
consider adding a pavilion with seating that is ADA accessible from the development’s sidewalk.  
Corey Gutherie asked for clarification on the size of the pavilion should the Council approve the staff 
recommendation; he explained they did not consider adding one in an attempt to keep maintenance 
fees down for the HOA in this size community. Discussion occurred.  Mr. Gutherie was concerned 
about the pavilion being subject to the setback requirements of the right-of-way; Clay Moss 
recommended providing the build out plan including the pavilion and the department would determine 
if the setbacks needed to be moved.  Council stated they would have no issue providing a variance if 
needed.  

 

Motion to approve the greenspace area for Arbor West Subdivision to include a 12 x 20 pavilion with 
a concrete pad with ADA access, two grills, picnic tables and a permanent trash can made by W. Illg; 
second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.         

    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

At 5:29 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for potential/pending 
litigation and land acquisition made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  
 

At 5:53 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 
 

Motion to resume regular session was made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.     

    ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 5:54 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 

 

 
 Approved this 15th day of May 2023 

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, May 1, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 
 
 
  





Exhibit "A" 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



      

  SUBJECT:   APPROVE REAPPOINTMENT OF KEVIN HERRIT AS THE PRIVATE SECTOR 
MEMBER OF THE GEORGIA MOUNTAIN REGIONAL COMMISSION COUNCIL 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 05/15/2023 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
    TO APPOINT KEVIN HERRIT AS THE MEMBER REPRESENTING THE PRIVATE SECTOR OF 

DAWSON COUNTY FOR THE GEORGIA MOUNTAIN REGIONAL COMMISSION COUNCIL  

    TERM: JULY 1, 2023 TO JUNE 30, 2024 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• KEVIN HERRIT SERVED AS THE PRIVATE SECTOR REPRESENATIVE FROM JULY 1,
2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023

• DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL CONSIDER APPROVAL
DURING A FUTURE MEETING

• DEADLINE TO SUBMIT APPOINTMENT SELECTION IS 06/05/2023

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor_____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #   7b 



 

     

   P.O. Box 1720 • Gainesville, Georgia 30503 • Phone (770)538-2626 • FAX (770)538-2625 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To: Mayors, County Commission Chairmen, City and County Managers, City and County 

Clerks 

 

From: Heather Feldman, GMRC Executive Director 

 

Date:  May 4, 2023 

 

Re: Appointment or Reappointment of Private Sector Members of the GMRC Council 

 

Pursuant to the GMRC Bylaws, each county within the Georgia Mountains Regional 

Commission (GMRC) has one Private Sector Appointee on the GMRC Council. All GMRC 

private sector appointments must be certified annually by the full council. This will be done at 

the June 29, 2023 Council Meeting which will be held in Blairsville, GA. Per Article IV, Section 

I.C.“Appointees should be active members of the business or professional community 

represented and shall be capable of representing the broad private sector business interests of 

the county from which he or she is appointed”.  

 

We encourage the county and its cities to jointly agree on the appointee. I encourage you to 

discuss with each other and the appointee of your intentions. If we do not hear differently, we 

assume that you do not plan to change your current appointment, so it is very important that you 

notify GMRC of your intentions. The appointment form is attached, and should be returned, by 

email, to Gina Kessler by Monday, June 5, 2023. Should you have any questions, please contact 

Gina Kessler at 770-538-2607 or gkessler@gmrc.ga.gov. 

 

Current private sector appointees are: 

                County    Appointee   

  Banks    Vicki Boling 

  Dawson    Kevin Herrit 

  Franklin    Leslie McFarlin 

  Habersham    Ken Schubring 

  Hall    Deborah Mack  

  Hart    Bill Chafin 

  Lumpkin   Rebecca Mincey  

  Rabun    Doug Wayne 

  Stephens    James Addison 

  Towns    Denise McKay  

  Union    Mitch Griggs 

  White    Susan Cremering 

mailto:gkessler@gmrc.ga.gov


 

     
   P.O. Box 1720 •  Gainesville, Georgia  30503  •  Phone (770)538-2626  •  FAX (770)538-2625 

 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

To:  Gina Kessler, GMRC Executive Assistant 

From:  ___________________________________________ 

Re:  Appointment for ____________ County’s Private Sector Appointee 

 

 

 

The County and its City(s) have agreed to appoint or reappoint 

___________________________ as our Private Sector Representative on the 

GMRC Council to serve from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 

 

 
     _______________________________ 
     County or City Official 
 
     _______________________________ 
     Position 
 
 

________________________ 
Attest 
 
________________________ 
Date 
 
 

Please return to gkessler@gmrc.ga.gov no later than June 5th. 
 

mailto:gkessler@gmrc.ga.gov


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
 

• SERVICE AWARDS FOR MAY 2023 
• APRIL 2023 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH 

 
    
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PROCLAMATION: NATIONAL ACCOUNTING DAY, MAY 19, 2023 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO READ PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL ACCOUNTING DAY 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager ______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9     
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PROCLAMATION: NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK, MAY 21 – 27, 2023 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO READ PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager ______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    
TO REVIEW AND CONSIDER PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT CONCERNING 

FINALIZATION OF DISTRICT MAPS AND MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMPENSATION 
 
 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
IF MOVING FORWARD WITH CHARTER AMENDMENT, FIRST AND SECOND READINGS AND 
ADOPTIONS WILL BE ADVERTISED AND SCHEDULED FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE JUNE 
5, 2023 AND JUNE 19, 2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
 
 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 03-2023 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF APPROVING A CLARIFIED REAPPORTIONMENT MAP 
AND TO ADDRESS COMPENSATION OF THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY  

 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia provides in Section 5.11(e) there  
  shall be four (4) council member districts of approximately equal populations that  
  shall be created and modified as required. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville’s current voting district posts were created utilizing data  
  obtained from the 2020 United States Census; 
 
WHEREAS, the City utilized the services of the Georgia Mountain Regional Commission to 

analyze available data and information from the most recent decennial census to 
describe population growth and change; 

 
WHEREAS,  the Georgia Mountain Regional Commission determined population growth  
  and shifts resulted in uneven voting districts; 
 
WHEREAS, reapportioned election districts were adopted in accordance with state law; 
 
WHEREAS, the maps adopted as part of the reapportionment process have been clarified to 

include areas where there is no voting population, but which nevertheless is within 
the City.; 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt the clarified map, which does not alter the voting districts 

or apportionment, but more accurately reflects the district breakdown of the City; 
 
WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 36-35-4 authorizes municipalities to fix the salary, compensation, and 

benefits of the members of its governing authority; 
 
WHEREAS,  any change to the salary, compensation, and benefits of the governing authority 

must be completed prior to the time for candidate qualification and cannot take 
effect until after those persons next elected take office. 

 
 
 

Subject Matter: Charter Amendment – District Map Finalization;       
Compensation of Mayor and Council 

       First Reading and Adoption:     ______________   
Second Reading and Final Adoption: ______________ 

Publication Dates: ________________________________ 
Filed with DC Clerk of Court (publication version):  ______________ 

Filed with DC Clerk of Court (adopted version):  ______________ 
Filed with Georgia Secretary of State: ______________ 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, a notice of the proposed Charter Amendment, authorized by the General   
  Assembly pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 was published in the Legal Organ for  
  Dawson County for each of three (3) weeks within sixty (60) days of the final  
  action on this ordinance, O.C.G.A. § 35-35-3(b)(1); 
 
WHEREAS, the title of these Ordinances shall have been read and the Ordinance duly adopted  
  at two (2) consecutive City Council meetings not less than seven (7) nor more  
  than sixty (60) days apart, as required by Georgia law; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council for the City of Dawsonville, at consecutive 
Regular meetings of the Governing Authority for the City of Dawsonville, does HEREBY 
DECLARE AND ORDAIN as follows: 
 

1. The statements and conclusions contained in the “Whereas” paragraphs above are made 
the findings of fact of the City Council. 
 
Any previous maps, depictions, or representations of the voting district posts found in the 
Charter of the City of Dawsonville are hereby REPEALED in their Entirety. 
 

2. A new Appendix A is hereby enacted and described as shown in the attached Exhibit 1 
illustrating the clarified district lines. 
 

3. Subsection (a) of Section 2.13 of Article II of the Charter of the City of Dawsonville is 
hereby amended by repealing existing subsection (a) in its entirety and replacing it with a 
new section subsection (a) as follows: 

 
Effective January 1, 2024, the compensation of the mayor shall be 
$1,200.00 per month and the compensation of each council member shall 
be $600.00 per month, until such time as the compensation of the mayor 
and/or council are amended by ordinance adding to or amending the City’s 
Code of Ordinances in accordance with subsection (c). In addition to this 
monthly compensation, the mayor and council members shall also be paid 
$100.00 per individual for each city council meeting and for any other 
meeting that has been pre-approved for compensation by the council that 
they attend other than the first regular city council meeting of the month. In 
addition to their compensation, the mayor and each council member shall 
be eligible to receive such benefits as may be permitted by law and approved 
by the City Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of ________________, 2023. 
 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   
 
 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DISCUSS AVAILABLE RENTAL SPACE AT CITY HALL COMPLEX 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    
TO DISCUSS OPTIONS FOR AVAILABLE RENTAL SPACE AT CITY HALL COMPLEX 
 
 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 
 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PERSONNEL POLICY REVISIONS WITH REVISED ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    
TO PRESENT PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE PERSONNEL POLICY 
 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• WILL PRESENT IN JUNE FOR FINAL APPROVAL AFTER CITY COUNCIL AND CITY 
ATTORNEY HAS HAD TIME TO REVIEW AND PROVIDE FEEDBACK 

• REDLINED COPY IS ATTACHED WITH AN OUTLINE OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES. SOME 
CHANGES ARE SPELLING, WORDING, ETC. 

• OUTLINE OF CHANGES TO ORGANIZATION CHART IS ALSO PROVIDED FOR YOUR 
REVIEW 

 
 
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:   Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



O
ut

lin
e 

of
 P

ro
po

se
d 

Ch
an

ge
s

Pg
. 5

At
te

nd
an

ce
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Ad
de

d 
se

nt
en

ce
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
fr

om
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 a

bs
en

ce
Pg

. 1
1

U
ni

fo
rm

 R
ul

es
 &

 R
eg

s
U

pd
at

ed
 w

or
di

ng
 fo

r a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 a

pp
ar

el
Pg

. 1
3

U
se

 o
f C

ity
 O

w
ne

d 
Pr

op
er

ty
Ad

de
d 

se
ct

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
hi

bi
ts

 sh
ar

in
g 

pa
ss

w
or

ds
 a

nd
 c

la
us

e 
ab

ou
t i

nt
er

ne
t s

ec
ur

ity
Pg

. 1
6

Dr
iv

er
 S

af
et

y 
Po

lic
y

U
pd

at
ed

 se
ct

io
n 

on
 c

el
l p

ho
ne

 u
se

 w
hi

le
 d

riv
in

g
Pg

. 2
3

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 L

ite
ra

tu
re

Ad
de

d 
pe

rm
iss

io
ns

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
au

th
or

iza
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

Pg
. 2

5
Pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

ac
tiv

ie
s

Ad
de

d 
Ci

ty
 v

eh
ic

le
s t

o 
rig

ht
 to

 se
ar

ch
Pg

. 2
6 

Se
cu

rit
y 

Ca
m

er
a 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s

Ad
de

d 
en

tir
e 

se
ct

io
n 

2.
24

 to
 p

ol
ic

y
Pg

. 3
0

Ex
em

pt
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
U

pd
at

ed
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
l e

xe
m

pt
 p

os
iti

on
s c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

Pg
. 3

2
Pe

rs
on

al
 L

ea
ve

Cl
ar

ifi
ed

 c
as

h 
ou

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s a

nd
 a

cc
ru

ed
 p

er
so

na
l l

ea
ve

 p
ol

ic
y

Pg
. 3

7
Co

nd
iti

on
s I

nv
ol

vi
ng

 P
an

de
m

ic
Ad

de
d 

se
ct

io
n 

to
 a

llo
w

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r t
im

e 
w

he
n 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
va

cc
in

at
io

ns
Pg

. 3
9

Co
nd

iti
on

s I
nv

ol
vi

ng
 P

an
de

m
ic

Ad
de

d 
se

ct
io

n 
on

 re
fe

rr
in

g 
to

 th
e 

CD
C 

fo
r g

ui
da

nc
e

Pg
. 4

8
Re

po
rt

s o
f P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Cl

ar
ifi

ed
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s
Pg

. 5
7

Cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

os
iti

on
s

Cl
ar

ifi
ed

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
on

 c
re

at
in

g 
ne

w
 p

os
iti

on
s 

Pg
. 5

7
Ab

ol
ish

m
en

t o
f p

os
iti

on
s

Cl
ar

ifi
ed

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
on

 a
bo

lis
hi

ng
 n

ew
 p

os
iti

on
s

Pg
. 6

0
Co

nt
in

ui
ng

 E
du

ca
tio

n
U

pd
at

ed
 se

ct
io

n 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Pg
. 6

0
Em

pl
oy

ee
 A

w
ar

ds
Re

st
ru

ct
ur

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 a

dd
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

f t
he

 Q
ua

rt
er

Pg
. 6

5
U

pd
at

ed
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 A

: U
pd

at
ed

 O
rg

an
iza

tio
n 

Ch
ar

t
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 D

: U
pd

at
ed

 L
ea

ve
 R

eq
ue

st
 F

or
m

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
Fl

oa
tin

g 
Ho

lid
ay

 (p
re

vi
ou

sly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d)

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E
: E

m
pl

oy
ee

 E
xi

t I
nt

er
vi

ew
 F

or
m

 - 
U

pd
at

ed
 to

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ve

rs
io

n 
fr

om
 G

M
A

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 F
: U

pd
at

ed
 H

un
tin

g 
Pe

rm
iss

io
n 

an
d 

Re
le

as
e

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 G
: N

ew
 P

TO
 C

as
h 

O
ut

 R
eq

ue
st

 F
or

m



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
 

  

May 1, 2023 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

To: Mayor Mike Eason, Mayor Pro Tem John Walden, Councilman Caleb Phillips, Councilman Mark French 
and Councilman Will Illg 

From: Bob Bolz, City Manager 

Re: Explanation & Justification Update Organization Chart 

Gentlemen, as required by our Personnel Manual, Clerk Bev Banister, Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway, and I conducted 
an annual review of our Employee Personnel Policy. As part of that review, I also evaluated our existing organization chart 
and made recommendations for existing positions and our current needs, as well as future needs. I have attached the chart 
for your review, feedback, and consideration.  

As this organization chart was developed, I looked five to ten years into the future with a conservative eye. Approval and 
implementation of this chart with revisions and title changes to existing positions will not require any additional funding. 
Additional funding would only be required for future positions and of course, not until we have identified a future funding 
source. 

The chart is color coordinated to make viewing easier. I will break down the positions by category and current staffing. 
Positions that are not highlighted are existing and filled. Positions (3) highlighted in magenta, are existing, funded, and 
approved positions that are vacant, and we are attempting to fill as soon as possible. Positions (6) highlighted in green are 
existing and approved positions that we are seeking to reclassify/rename with no salary increase to clean-up the chart and 
make it consistent. Position (1) highlighted in gray is a new position with funding that will be sought in FY24 with plans to fill 
in the spring of 2024. Positions (16) highlighted in blue are new positions that may be needed in the future should workload 
mandate. Before filling these positions, we would seek City Council approval should revenue be available to cover the cost. 

Planning & Zoning: 

Our greatest need at the present time is to fill the Planning Director position. Most likely our greatest need in the next two 
years is for a Planner. One of Harmit’s recommendations was to fund a Planner ASAP.  

• Planning & Zoning Director - VACANT 
• Inspector/Plan Review/Code Enforcement – Clay Moss 
• P&Z Administrative Assistant & IT Specialist – Stacy Harris 
• Permit & License Technician – Stan Zaverhuka 
• Intern P/T – VACANT 
• Planner – NEW POSITION NOT FILLED UNTIL NEEDED AND FUNDING AVAILABLE 

 
 

 

 



Administration – Customer Service Department: 

• City Clerk – Bev Banister 
• Utility Billing Clerk/Deputy City Clerk – Tracy Smith 
• Customer Service Specialist/Administrative Assistant – Beth Tuttle 

Finance – Human Resources: 

The only change recommended to this department would involve no additional funding but would change Robin Gazaway’s 
title from Finance Administrator to Finance Director. This would make the organization chart look the same across the board. 

• Finance Administrator – change title to Finance Director with no salary increase – Robin Gazaway 
• Accounts Payable/Special Events Coordinator – Sara Beacham 
• Accounting/Human Resource Technician – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Grant Writer, Part-time – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 

Downtown, Economic Development, Grants & Marketing: 

• Downtown Director – Amanda Edmondson 

Public Works (Roads, Building, Parks, Cemetery, Animal Control: 

I am recommending we change Steven McNeal’s title from Public Works Foreman to Public Works Operation Manager. This 
would require no additional funding. 

• Public Works Director/Code Enforcement – Trampas Hansard 
• Public Works Foreman – change title to Public Works Operation Manager with no pay increase – Steven 

McNeal 
• Roads/Equipment Operator I – Jon Davis 
• Roads/Equipment Operator I – Tony Seabolt 
• Roads/Equipment Operator I – John Tatum 
• Custodian – Annette Watson 
• Laborer (1/2 position shared with Utility Department) – Hunter Simmons 
• Facilities/Building Lead – not yet funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Roads & Street Lead – not yet funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Parks & Cemetery Lead – not yet funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Parks & Cemetery Maintenance – not yet funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 

Utilities (Water, Sewer, Garbage): 

With your approval of the recent upgrade of Jacob Barr from Utilities Operation Manager to Utilities Director and 
corresponding raise, the position became Exempt and no longer cost us overtime. The savings in overtime offsets his increase. 
His number two position title would change from Utilities Foreman to Utilities Operation Manager and not require any 
additional money. Two of his existing positions, both titled Treatment Plant Operator, would receive title changes but no 
additional funding, with one becoming a Water Treatment Lead and the other a Sewage Distributions/Collections Lead. With 
the resignation of Kyle Richardson, we have one existing position, Treatment Plant Operator, that is vacant that we are 
seeking to fill ASAP. The title for that position would change to Distributions/Collections Operator I but would require no 
additional funding. We are recommending permission to advertise and hire the Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager 
towards the end of FY2024, target start date April 2024. We budgeted for it, and it would be good to have that position on 
board as the plant design is finalized, construction started, and the plant opened.  Staff currently feel a rate increase is 
overdue and a rate study is underway. This need is compounded to cover the cost of the wastewater treatment plant. We 
will provide a recommendation appropriate to what the study recommends. The other future positions would not be funded 
until needed by workload and growth and only when funding is available. Utilities would be broken down by trade specific 
specialties, each requiring specific certifications, including, wastewater treatment, water treatment, wastewater distribution 
and collections (getting water to customers and sewage to the plant), and solid waste (garbage).  

• Utility Director – Jacob Barr 
• Utilities Foreman – change title to Utilities Operation Manager with no pay increase – Blake Croft 
• Treatment Plant Operator– change title to Water Treatment Lead with no pay increase– Westin Lee 
• Treatment Plant Operator – change title to Distributions & Collections Lead with no pay increase – David Schuette 



• Treatment Plant Operator – change title to Distributions & Collections Operator I with no pay increase – VACANT 
• Laborer (1/2 position shared with Public Works Department) – Hunter Simmons 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager – VACANT RECOMMEND FILLING IN SPRING 2024 PRIOR TO WWTP 

CONSTRUCTION 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Water Treatment Operator II – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Distribution – Collections Operator – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Distribution – Collections Operator – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Solid Waste (Garbage) Lead – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 
• Solid Waste Technician (Garbage) – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 

Engineering/Assistant City Manager: 

AS the city continues to grow, we need to consider hiring a city engineer. IT would save money on plan review and increase 
turnaround time. I would recommend it also be designated Assistant City Manager. 

• Engineering Director/Assistant City Manager – new position, not funded – POTENTIAL FUTURE NEED 

This summarizes our suggested revisions to our organization chart. Should anyone have questions, please let me know. Thank 
you for your consideration, leadership, and support. 

 

 
 































































































































Ap
pe

nd
ix

 A

CI
TY

 O
F 

D
AW

SO
N

VI
LL

E
O

RG
AN

IZ
AT

IO
N

 C
H

AR
T

W
W

 T
P 

M
N

G
R 

SP
RI

N
G

 2
02

4
W

AT
ER

 T
RE

AT
M

EN
T 

LE
AD

D
IS

T.
 &

 C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
 

LE
AD

SO
LI

D
 W

AS
TE

 L
EA

D
U

TI
LI

TY
 B

IL
LI

N
G

 C
LK

 
D

EP
U

TY
 C

IT
Y 

CL
ER

K

FA
CI

LI
TI

ES
/B

LD
G

 P
/T

PA
RK

S/
CE

M
ET

ER
Y 

LE
AD

PA
RK

S/
CE

M
ET

ER
Y 

M
AI

N
T

RO
AD

S/
EQ

U
IP

 O
P 

I
RO

AD
S/

EQ
U

IP
 O

P 
I

RO
AD

S/
EQ

U
IP

 O
P 

I

W
W

 T
RE

AT
M

EN
T 

PL
AN

T 
O

P 
I

W
W

 T
RE

AT
M

EN
T 

PL
AN

T 
O

P 
II

W
AT

ER
 T

RE
AT

M
EN

T 
O

P
D

IS
T.

/C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
S 

O
P 

I
SO

LI
D

 W
AS

TE
 T

EC
H

D
IS

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

/ 
CO

LL
EC

TI
O

N
 O

P
D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
/ 

CO
LL

EC
TI

O
N

 O
P

1 
LA

BO
RE

R 
F/

T

FA
C/

BL
D

G
 L

EA
D

CU
ST

O
D

IA
N

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N

H
IS

TO
RI

C 
PR

ES
ER

V.
 

CO
M

M
IS

SI
O

N

CU
ST

. S
ER

V.
 S

PE
C.

 
AD

M
IN

 A
SS

IS
TA

N
T

G
RA

N
T 

W
RI

TE
R 

P/
T

AC
CT

S 
PA

YA
BL

E 
SP

EC
. E

VE
N

T 
CO

O
R.

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

IN
TE

RN
 (P

T)

PE
RM

IT
/L

IC
EN

SE
 

TE
CH

P&
Z 

AD
M

IN
   

   
   

   
   

IT
 S

PE
CI

AL
IS

T

CI
TY

 M
AN

AG
ER

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 D

EV
. 

AU
TH

O
RI

TY

PW
 O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
S 

M
AN

AG
ER

PU
BL

IC
 W

O
RK

S 
D

IR
EC

TO
R

AC
CT

 T
EC

H
/H

R

M
AY

O
R

D
AW

SO
N

VI
LL

E 
H

IS
T.

 
M

U
SE

U
M

 B
D

D
H

M
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

D
H

M
 S

TA
FF

 &
 

VO
LU

N
TE

ER
S

RO
AD

S 
LE

AD

CI
TI

ZE
N

S 
O

F 
D

AW
SO

N
VI

LL
E

EN
G

. D
IR

/ A
SS

T.
 C

IT
Y 

M
AN

AG
ER

U
TI

LI
TY

 D
IR

EC
TO

R

CI
TY

 C
O

U
N

CI
L

VA
CA

N
T 

PO
SI

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
 U

PG
RA

D
E 

TI
TL

E 
CH

AN
G

E

FU
TU

RE
 P

O
SI

TI
O

N
S

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
FI

N
AN

CE
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

CI
TY

 C
LE

RK

U
TI

LI
TY

 O
PE

R 
M

AN
AG

ER

PL
AN

N
ER

CO
D

E 
EN

FO
RC

EM
T 

IN
SP

TR
/P

LA
N

 R
VW







Appendix D 
 

 
    
Employee Name: __________________________________ Date: ______________________________ 
 
Supervisor Name: ______________________________       Department: ________________________ 
 

 
 
 

 

TYPE OF LEAVE REQUESTED 
 
___ Personal Leave ___ Military Leave    ___ Time Off Without Pay     __ Jury Duty* 
 
___ Surgery      ___ Bereavement      ___ Maternity/Paternity     ___ Floating Holiday    ___ Other 
 
 
Dates of Leave:  from:  _____________ to: _____________ Return to Work Date: ____________   
  
Total Current Leave Accrual: ________                            Coverage Needed:    ___ Yes ___ No  
 
Staff Working Each Day: ______________________________________________________ 
 

 
Employee Signature: ____________________________________         Date: ____________ 
 
Direct Supervisor Signature: ______________________________ Date: ____________ 
 
Department Head Signature: _____________________________         Date: ____________  
 
 
 
 

 
 

MANAGEMENT APPROVAL 
 
___ Approved     ___ Rejected    Reason: ________________________________________ 
 
 
City Manager Signature: _______________________________        Date: _____________  

 
 
 

* Jury Duty paperwork must be submitted along with your timesheet. 

 

 

 
 

City of Dawsonville 
415 Highway 53 East Suite 100 

Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
 

Human Resource Department 

 

 

 

Employee Leave  
Request Form 



Appendix E 
 
 

 

 

We appreciate you taking a few minutes to answer the following questions as honestly as possible. The information 
is vital and will assist in analyzing our employee retention and turnover. Thank you for your cooperation! 

 
NAME DEPARTMENT   

POSITION SUPERVISOR   

HIRE DATE TERM DATE    

REASON FOR LEAVING (Please check all applicable) 
 

VOLUNTARY    
Better Employment Job Security Maternity Retirement Work Conditions 
Co-Workers Location/distance Military Return to school 
Health Marriage  Relocation Supervision 
Other (please explain)   

 
 

VOLUNTARY SEPARATION ONLY 
New Employer   
Do you believe your new position will offer you something the city should have provided but didn’t?   
If so, please explain.   
Would you consider re-employment with the city?   

INVOLUNTARY 
Excessive absenteeism or lateness Insubordination Position eliminated Seasonal employment 
Inability to perform tasks Poor Production Never returned from a granted leave of absence 
Violation of City Policy (please explain)  
Other (please explain)  

 
Were you offered a transfer?  Yes  No To which department?  
If offered, was the transfer 
refused? 

 Yes  No If so, why?  

 
SUPERVISION     
How would you rate your supervision on the following points? Always Usually Sometimes Never 
Followed policies and practices     

Demonstrated fair and equal treatment     

Provided recognition on the job     

Developed cooperation and teamwork     

Encouraged and listened to suggestions     

Resolved complaints and problems     

TRAINING/DEVELOPMENT 
Please rate the following factors. 

 
Excellent 

 
Good 

 
Fair 

 
Poor 

Cooperation within your department     

Work relationship with your supervisor     

Were your skills & experience adequately utilized?     

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
 

EXIT INTERVIEW 



Appendix E 
 

EXIT INTERVIEW 
 

 Excellent Good Fair Poor 
Communications between you and your supervisor     

Training you received     

Potential for career     

Job Satisfaction     

Respect received from coworkers     

Opportunity for advancement     

Comments:       

SUMMARY  Yes No  

Did management adequately recognize employee contribution?     

Did you feel that you have had the support of management on the job?     

Do you feel the city fairly treated you?     

Were you paid an adequate salary for the work you did?     

Did you understand city policies and the reason for them?     

Have you observed incidences of theft of city property?     

Please suggest how we can make the city a better place to work.   
 
 

What did you like most about your position and/or city?   
 

What did you like least about your position and/or city?   
 
 
 

Additional Comments:   
 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT REPRESENTATIVE DATE 
 
 

C: Department Head   
City Manager 



Appendix F 
 

HUNTING PERMISSION AND RELEASE 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 
Whereas, the undersigned is an employee (”Employee”) of the City of Dawsonville (“City”) that desires to  hunt on City owned property commonly 
described as listed below (the “Hun�ng Area”); 

• Spray-fields approximately 214 acres 
• Well #111 approximately 30 acres 
• Burt Creek WWTP approximately 5 acres (bow only) 

Whereas, the City has a prac�ce of allowing employees and their immediate family members to hunt on the City owned property listed above; 

Whereas, no other areas owned by the City are open to hun�ng; 

Whereas, each year, employees must complete and submit to the City Manager for approval this Hun�ng Permission and Release form and are subject 
to the terms and condi�ons and benefits conferred on Employee by virtue of receiving permission to hunt in the Hun�ng Area 

AND WHEREAS, Employee and his/her Immediate Family Members signing below, in exchange for said hun�ng permission, agree as follows: 

1. Only Employee and his/her immediate family (parents, spouse, son or daughter and/or stepchildren) that have signed and been approved 
by the City Manager below my hunt in the Hun�ng Area. No guests will be allowed or permited to hunt. Employee and his/her immediate 
family must all have valid Georgia hun�ng licenses. Permission expires upon termina�on of employment with the City or one year from date 
hereof, whichever occurs first. 

2. Prior to any hunt, Employee must inform the City Manager or his/her designee of Employee’s intent to hunt on specific days so that the City 
Manager may avoid having too many individuals hun�ng at any given �me.  No hun�ng may occur during the normal business hours of the 
City, nor during any �me when the Employee is “on duty” or “on call” for the City. 

3. All persons hun�ng pursuant to this form agree to take all due steps, care, and cau�on necessary to ensure that any and all shot, loads, 
bullets, arrows, and other hun�ng ammuni�on are discharged only in such a way that they will not leave the property of the City, and they 
further agree that they either are or will make themselves aware of the loca�on of the boundaries of the City’s property for that purpose 
as well as to avoid any poten�al issues of trespass. 

4. Employee and his/her immediate family agree, on behalf of themselves as well as their heirs, administrators, executors, beneficiaries, and 
successors to the full permissible extent of Georgia law, to release and waive any and all claims that  exist or may exist in the future as a 
result of Employee and his/her immediate family hun�ng in the Hun�ng Area, including but not limited to any claim of personal injury, 
damages, illness, or death, whether or not actually arising out of the hun�ng ac�vity conducted on the premises. It is the express 
understanding of Employee and his/her immediate family that hun�ng is a dangerous sport and that they are hun�ng in the Hun�ng Area. 

5. Employee acknowledges and agrees that hun�ng in the Hun�ng Area is not in any way related to employee’s du�es as a City Employee, that 
while in Hun�ng Area Employee is not ac�ng in his or her capacity as a City Employee, and that, in general, Employee’s ac�ons and ac�vi�es 
while in the Hun�ng Area are separate and apart from Employee’s employment with the City. 

6. Prior to hun�ng pursuant to the terms of this Permission and release, Employee agrees to obtain the signature of each family member over 
18 years of age and represents that Employee has the legal right to sign on behalf of any family member under 18 years of age. 

7. All person signing this document agree, for themselves as well as their heirs, administrators, executors, beneficiaries and successors, to 
protect, defend, and indemnify the City from any ac�ons, claims, demands or liabili�es arising out of our related to any and all ac�ons taken 
or not taken by the undersigned or the persons for whom they sign, which ac�ons or inac�ons occur in the Hun�ng Area. 

8. All persons signing this document for themselves or on behalf of another have read it and understand it, have been given the opportunity 
to have this document reviewed by an atorney of their own choosing, and sign this document voluntarily. 

So agreed this the    day of        , 20   

 
                   
Employee     Immediate Family Member   Rela�onship 
 
 
              
Immediate Family Member         Rela�onship  Immediate Family Member      Rela�onship 
 
 
 
      Approved:        
Immediate Family Member         Rela�onship    City Manager   Date 
 



Appendix G 
 

 
    
Employee Name: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
Criteria for PTO Cash Out: 
 

• Employee must take a minimum of forty (40) hours personal leave per calendar 
year. 

• Employee must have a minimum of 120 hours in their accrued leave time to be 
eligible. 

• Employee may only cash out up to eighty (80) hours per calendar year but not 
before a minimum of forty (40) hours personal leave has been taken. 

• Employee must receive approval from the City Manager. 
• Cash outs will only be processed in conjunction with regularly scheduled payroll 

cycles. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  PTO cash out wages are subject to federal tax withholding, Social Security, 
Medicare and applicable state tax withholding.   
 

 
 

 
Current PTO Balance: ________________________    
 
Number of Hours to be cashed out: ______________ 
 
 
 
Employee Signature: ____________________________________         Date: ____________ 
 
City Manager Signature: ______________________________ __         Date: ____________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

City of Dawsonville 
415 Highway 53 East Suite 100 

Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
 

Human Resource Department 

 

 

 
 

PTO Cash Out Request Form 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  FY 2023-2024 PROPOSED BUDGET PRESENTATION________  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 PRESENTATION OF THE FY 2023-2024 PROPOSED BUDGET 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• COPIES OF THE DRAFT BUDGET WILL BE PRESENTED TO MAYOR AND COUNCIL AT THE 
MEETING  

• ONCE PRESENTED TO CITY COUNCIL, DRAFT BUDGET WILL BE POSTED TO THE WEBSITE 
AND AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON REQUEST  

• PUBLIC HEARING IS SCHEDULED FOR THE JUNE 5, 2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
• CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF FY2024 BUDGET IS SCHEDULED FOR THE JUNE 19, 2023 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:   Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    14      
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     15     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 PREPARED May 10, 2023, FOR May 15, 2023, AGENDA 

Comprehensive Plan: Thus far we have had three very successful Comprehensive Plan Meetings and received 
over 340 surveys. Attendance at meetings has been great. Our next meeting is on May 11th, then June 8th, we hope 
you can join us.  
 
Personnel Vacancies: We continue to advertise for two vacant positions, the Planning and Zoning Director position 
as well as one Treatment Plant Operator position. An interview for the PZ Director position was held this week and 
references are being checked before we decide on the hire. 
 
Celebration of Our Outstanding Staff: This month we celebrate four groups of employees. We started the month 
celebrating National City Clerks Week. The week of May 8th we celebrated Water Professionals Week. National 
Accounting Day will be celebrated on May 19th. Finally, the week of May 21st, we will celebrate National Public Works 
Week. We are fortunate to have an incredible team of people serving our city and it is always an honor and rewarding 
to celebrate that fact. 
 
Staff Training: Amanda Edmondson attended Carl Vincent Economic Development training this month. Jacob Barr 
and Blake Croft attended GRWA training this month to maintain certification hours. David Schuette attained his 
Wastewater Collector System Operator license this month to add to the Water Distribution Operator license he 
obtained in June 2022. 
 
Safety Grant: We finally received additional AED’s that have been backordered for months. Although after the 
deadline, LGRMS is allowing us to use safety grant funds to cover the cost. 
 
SPLOST VII Paving: We spoke with the county this week reminding them that according to the SPLOST VII 
agreement, they are to pave Shoal Creek Road from the Historic Courthouse to State Route 136 and Burt Creek 
Road from State Route 136 to the Dawson/Lumpkin County line.  Burt Creek was to be paved within two years of the 
agreement signing date, which was May 20, 2021. We are putting together plans for the paving of Maple Street now. 
 
Distillery & Restaurant Update: The required engineered drawing of the kitchen space including the fire 
suppression system is underway at a cost of $12,500.00. The rest room construction project within the distillery is 
underway. We anticipate having a contract with the distillery soon. We continue to have an interest in the restaurant 
space from Gracious Plenty. With direction from the City Council, we are meeting with potential providers while we 
await the final engineered drawings for the kitchen. 
 
Georgia Racing Hall OF Fame: The Museum Director and our Public Works Director are researching improvements 
to the museum front, removal of old, leaking doors and windows to be replaced with showroom doors to enable staff 
to bring cars in and out with a new canopy. We are awaiting the Museum Director to provide bids for the special door 
considerations to allow vehicles to be moved in and out. We have been waiting since May 2022 for engineered 
drawings of the desired pavilion over the Winner’s Circle. We hope to have those for review by the City 
Council/Mayor soon. 

Deputy Program with Sheriff’s Office: Our Community Service program is underway with good results. 

Dawson County Hazard Mitigation Task Force: Last updated in 2018 with city participation, both the City Manager 
and the Public Works Director are serving on this working group to revise the plan for 2023. 
 



DCA Certified Local Government: PZ Staff finalized and have submitted the grant request that would cover the 
cost of the required survey needed to regain our Certified Local Government status.  
 
Radio Repeaters for Water Meter & SCADA Upgrades: The project is ending as the last repeaters are being 
installed for optimum radio signal capability providing greater customer service. 
 
Governor’s Office of Planning & Budget Grant for Water System Infrastructure due to Population Increase: 
No news on the grant we applied for offered by the Governor’s Office of OPB that can be awarded to municipalities 
experiencing significant population increases. The grant request totaled $1,154,720.00 and would be used to cover 
the cost of drilling and setting up operation of the new well. The grant requires a 75-25 match; so, our portion would 
be $285,000.00. We have already budgeted in our Enterprise Fund for the total amount. If awarded, this could 
represent a savings of up to $896,220.00. The plans and design for the well are complete and under review by GBT. 
 
Impact Fees Study: We await the fee recommendations from GMRC’s Adam Hazell. 

Downtown Strategic Plan: Kevin Tallant has finalized the contract and it has gone to TSW, the selected provider. 
We look forward to that process starting soon. 

Wastewater Treatment Plant: We await comments from EPD and the USDA with regards to the package 
Turnipseed Engineering submitted for their permitting process and funding consideration.  
 
GMRC Meetings: On May 17th, we will host the GMRC City County Managers Meeting in the Joe Lane Cox Room. 
 
GDOT Improvements to Downtown Roundabout: GDOT have advertised the project to restripe the crosswalks 
around the courthouse square.  When a contractor is selected and an NTP issued, they will notify us. 

Wellness Program: The City Manager and Finance Director met with a representative from GMA regarding wellness 
program opportunities and we have a meeting next week with a representative from our health insurance company 
as we work to implement a program for our outstanding personnel. 
 
Main Street Park Projects: 
 

• Land and Water Conservation Fund: Staff are working with CEC to develop a Land and Water 
Conservation Fund grant that could be applied to the park. By law it must go toward outdoor recreation. It 
cannot go toward roads and infrastructure to get to a new park. We have several areas in the existing park 
that could benefit from LWCF that could cover the cost of a bathroom for the court and skate park area and 
a splash pad. If awarded, it would be a 50-50 match. We will continue research and let you know as more 
information becomes available. 
 

• Playground: The very popular zip line was repaired/replaced at a cost of $8,000.00+ after a 50% discount. 
The mini merry-go-round is out of service as well, and we are awaiting parts expected to be delivered in 
June. Both pieces of equipment were damaged by adults using it despite our efforts to prevent such use. 
The wheelchair swing was vandalized, and repairs have been made. 
 

• Disc Golf: The course continues in popularity with popular league events every Thursday night. We are 
evaluating additions to this course that would involve an agreement with the BOE for use of some of their 
property along Allan Street. 
 

• Basketball Court & Pickleball Courts:  If you remember, initial bids for the grading portion of this project 
were opened December 6th with bids for just the grading, not court construction, ranging from $134,250.00 



to $186,370.00. These bids were rejected, and the project was rebid in April in hopes of cheaper bids. Our 
patience paid off and we opened new bids on May 10th. The low bid was $130,500.00 from Townley 
Construction and the high bid was Tri Scapes at $176,855.56. CEC will review the bid packages and then 
this project will proceed with your approval of $250,000.00 from SPLOST VII for the grading and court costs. 

 
• Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park.  

 
• Skate Park Expansion: Staff are estimating the cost for expansion of this amenity. We have an estimate of 

just under $50,000.00 for additional elements and we are awaiting bids on the cost of additional concrete 
pad. Installation of a safety fence between the walking path and the park is underway. 

  
• Small Bathroom between Shelter #3 and Skate Park/Court Area: We are working identify a modular rest 

room that can be set on site after grading and hooked up to utilities.  
 

• Stage: Staff are researching the purchase of a hydraulic, mobile stage, like what we used at the tree lighting 
event. Since it is portable it can be set up and taken down in a few hours. This idea is opposed to an 
amphitheater. Our concerns for an amphitheater include cost, additionally facility would sit outside, weather, 
and possibly get vandalized. As we develop more research, we will present pros, cons, anticipated costs, 
and recommendations soon.  

 
• Dog Park: Eagle Scout candidate Palmer Hartley has finished his project complete with obstacles for the 

dogs, signage, and an entry way. The sidewalk is complete as is the landscape work. Palmer is home from 
UGA for the summer and we are planning a grand opening and we may have his Eagle ceremony there as 
well. 

 
• Bridge & Trail to Library: Construction is underway with most initial clearing complete. Next the culvert 

pipe will be installed then fill and siding. We hope the entire project will be completed by Memorial Day. 
 

• Geocaching Site: Geocaching is a sport that is growing in popularity. There has existed a cache at the 
GRHOF for years. We have been approached by a volunteer geocaching enthusiast that wants to install and 
will maintain three sites, one in Main Street Park, one at the Dog Park, and one at Wallace Park. Staff have 
met with her, and we are awaiting her official proposal. 
 

• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. The current cost estimate is 
over $350,000.00. 

 
Downtown Update:  
 

• Strategic Planning: Foundation of all Downtown Activities: 

a. The contract has been sent to TSW. 
b. Staff are creating a tentative project management framework and assembling project background 

research, recommendations, to begin working with consultant ASAP. It will include a robust public 
participation plan to support the plan process; many downtown businesses have agreed to 
maintain idea logs to document public interest; building relationships and assembling contact lists 
for this process.  

c. Managing ARC Grant:  Preparing Interim Progress Report for required submission. 
 



• DDA Business Co-op Advertisement Program: 

Created a “Downtown Dawsonville” website. DDA agreed to fund purchase URL/Domain names: 
Dawsonville Downtown .org, .gov, .com 

• Created a co-op of business owners to advertise on HWY 53 billboard. DDA agreed to participate in 
funding this effort. 

Created a “Business Welcome Packet” for new/potential businesses, including information on access to 
business assistance, grants, and other resources. 

• Creating Demographic and Market Data reports and infographics to make available on City website 
Downtown Development page for potential businesses. 

 
Leak Adjustments:  There were no Leak Adjustment this month. 

Calendar YTD     $1,978.55 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  05/15/2023      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH APRIL 30, 2023 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  16   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2022 - April 30, 2023

84%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 2,163,050$       2,110,485$       97.57%
      Licenses and permits 91,900              92,334              100.47%
      Intergovernmental revenues 6,000                -                   0.00%
      Fees 256,975            301,675            117.39%
      Other 796,326            166,203            20.87%

               Total revenues 3,314,251         2,670,697         80.58%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 134,400            110,756            82.41%
      Mayor 22,860              13,422              58.71%
      Elections 15,000              -                   0.00%
      Administration 1,769,862         1,372,190         77.53%
      City Hall building 163,694            169,738            103.69%
      Animal control 1,536                100                   6.51%
      Roads 584,363            563,554            96.44%
      Parks 65,528              109,907            167.73%
      Planning and zoning 440,008            383,510            87.16%
      Economic development 117,000            10,000              8.55%

 
               Total expenditures 3,314,251         2,733,177         82.47%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (62,480)            

      Transfer in From Reserves 62,480              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2022 - April 30, 2023

 
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Water fees 800,000$        782,869$        97.86%
       Sewer fees 900,000          922,406          102.49%
       Garbage fees 230,200          260,571          113.19%
       Miscellaneous 357,683          276,248          77.23%

               
               Total revenues 2,287,883       2,242,094       98.00%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000          542,192          94.46%
        Garbage service 230,200          193,438          84.03%
        Group insurance 164,000          147,557          89.97%
        Insurance -                  16,864            #DIV/0!
        Interest 87,450            66,793            76.38%
        Payroll taxes 31,000            23,563            76.01%
        Professional 193,000          307,502          159.33%
        Miscellaneous 149,311          145,831          97.67%
        Repairs/supplies 229,000          233,957          102.16%
        Retirement 24,000            21,064            87.77%
        Salaries 355,672          315,015          88.57%
        Technical services 77,000            74,034            96.15%
        Utilities 173,250          130,757          75.47%

               Total expenditures 2,287,883       2,218,567       96.97%

INCOME (LOSS) 23,527            



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2022 - April 30, 2023

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 100                   1,537                1537.00%
       Other 42,900              -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 43,000              1,537                3.57%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   76,721              0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                7,500                83.33%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 43,000              84,221              195.86%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (82,684)            

      Transfer in From Reserves 82,684              
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2022 - April 30, 2023

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,599,900         1,000,394         62.53%
       Interest 100                   20,586              20586.00%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 1,600,000         1,020,980         63.81%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown 789,000            689,000            0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects 677,000            -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation 100,000            10,867              0.00%

               Total expenditures 1,600,000         699,867            43.74%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 321,113            

      Transfer in From Reserves (321,113)          
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   


	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 05.01.2023 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.DRAFT
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GMRC
	7b. 2. 2023-24  Reappointment Request Memo
	7b. 3. Reappointment Form
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 Executive Summary PROCLAMATIONS
	9. 2. NATIONAL ACCOUNTING DAY
	10. 1 Executive Summary PROCLAMATIONS
	10. 2. NPWW PROC
	11. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CHARTER
	12. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RENTAL SPACE
	13. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items PERSONNEL POLICY
	13. 2. List of Changes to Policy_2023
	Sheet1

	13. 2. PERSONNEL POLICY
	13. 6. Exit Interview_updated 2023.pdf
	VOLUNTARY SEPARATION ONLY
	INVOLUNTARY
	EXIT INTERVIEW


	13. 4. Organization Chart Changes
	14. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items PROPOSED BUDGET
	15. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	16. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	16. 2. Financial Statements-APR23
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII

	16. 2. Financial Statements-APR23.pdf
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII




